



## **Section 300**

This chapter identifies the procedures for planning AND CREATING a subdivision, whether minor or major, and for platting a major subdivision.

## **Section 301**

### **Pre-Application Meeting**

The ~~subdivider~~ Subdivider OR DEVELOPER is STRONGLY encouraged to meet with the Regional Planning Commission STAFF or its designated representative prior to submitting a PLAN OR ~~plat~~ Plat. The purpose of this meeting is to discuss early and informally the purpose and effect of these ~~regulations~~ Regulations and the criteria and standards contained therein; and to familiarize the SUBDIVIDER OR Developer with APPLICABLE PLANS ~~the Comprehensive Plan, the County Highway Plan, the Parks and Public Open Space Plan, the~~ zoning regulations, improvements not limited to Roadways, and ~~the~~ drainage, sewage, and water systems of Portage County. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

### **301.1 Pre-application Sketch Content**

The ~~Subdivider~~ DEVELOPER is encouraged to submit to the Regional Planning Commission a sketch plan, legibly drawn at a suitable scale and containing the following information: ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

- A. The proposed ~~subdivision~~ Subdivision in relation to existing community facilities, thoroughfares and other transportation modes, shopping centers, manufacturing establishments, AND residential developments, ~~and natural~~.
- B. Natural and man-made features such as soil types, vegetation, contours, SURFACE WATER, AND POSSIBLE WETLANDS ON THE SITE OF THE DEVELOPMENT AND IMMEDIATELY ADJACENT TO IT. ~~and utilities in the neighboring area.~~
- C. The layout and acreage of streets, lots, and any non-residential sites such as commercial, manufacturing, school or recreational uses within the proposed ~~subdivision~~ Subdivision.
- D. The location of utilities in the proposed ~~subdivision~~ Subdivision, if available, or the locations of the nearest sources for water and public facilities for the disposal of sewage and storm water.
- E. The scale and title of the ~~subdivision~~ Subdivision, a north arrow, and the date.
- F. Name, address and phone number of the owners and the SUBDIVIDER OR Developer.

### **301.2 Pre-Application Committee**

A PRE-APPLICATION COMMITTEE MEETING MAY BE HELD AT THE DISCRETION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF OR MAY BE REQUESTED BY THE DEVELOPER OR BY THE COMMUNITY IN WHICH THE DEVELOPMENT IS LOCATED. THE PURPOSE OF THE PRE-APPLICATION COMMITTEE MEETING WILL BE TO COORDINATE FUTURE REVIEW PROCESSES AND DISCUSS APPLICABLE REGULATIONS OR POTENTIAL ISSUES THE DEVELOPMENT MAY ENCOUNTER. THE COMMITTEE SHALL INCLUDE AGENCIES AND DEPARTMENTS WHOSE INPUT IS PERTINENT TO THE REVIEW PROCESS, BUT DECISIONS AND OPINIONS EXPRESSED IN THE MEETING WILL NOT BE CONSTRUED AS A FORMAL REVIEW OF THE DEVELOPMENT AS REQUIRED IN THESE OR OTHER APPLICABLE REGULATIONS.

## **Section 302**

### **Optional Preliminary Plans**

#### **302.1 Preliminary Plans Required For Major Subdivisions**

The ~~Subdivider~~ DEVELOPER ~~is encouraged to~~ SHALL submit to the Regional Planning Commission a Preliminary Plan of the proposed Subdivision. ~~However, the submission of a preliminary plan is optional.~~ The submission of a Preliminary Plan shall not be considered as the filing of a Plat and shall not begin the running of time within which the Commission must act on a Plat. ~~The failure of a Subdivider to submit a preliminary plan shall in no way affect the Commission's decision to approve or reject the plat. (Amended June 26, 1984)~~ A PRELIMINARY PLAN MUST BE SUBMITTED after Township Preliminary Plat and/or Zone Approval FOR REVIEW AND ACTION BY THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR ANY MAJOR SUBDIVISION THAT INVOLVES NEW ROADS AND/OR CENTRAL SANITARY OR WATER SERVICES PRIOR TO THE DEVELOPER'S SUBMISSION OF A PLAT FOR REVIEW AND ACTION BY THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION.

#### **302.2 Submission of Preliminary Plan**

~~Eight (8)~~ THIRTEEN (13) copies of the Preliminary Plan shall be prepared by a professional engineer and/or surveyor and shall be submitted to the REGIONAL Planning Commission at least fourteen (14) days before the REGULAR meeting of the Planning Commission's ~~Land Use and Environment Committee~~, at which ~~time~~ MEETING the PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL ACT TO ~~plan will be~~ ACCEPT OR NOT ACCEPT THE PRELIMINARY PLAN FOR review~~ed~~. IF THE PLANNING COMMISSION CHOOSES TO NOT ACCEPT THE PLAN FOR REVIEW, THE DEVELOPER SHALL BE NOTIFIED IN WRITING OF THE REASONS FOR REFUSAL.

#### **302.3 Transmission of Preliminary Plan**

The Regional Planning Commission, in review of the Preliminary Plan, shall send copies to the following officials and agencies for their information, review and recommendations:

- A. COUNTY BUILDING DEPARTMENT OR CHIEF BUILDING OFFICIAL

- B. Portage County Engineer
- C. Portage County ~~Sanitary Engineer~~ WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT AND/OR APPLICABLE SANITARY OR WATER SERVICE PROVIDERS
- D. ~~County Board of~~ PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL Health DISTRICT
- E. Township Trustees of the township ~~that the subdivision lies in~~ WHERE THE SUBDIVISION IS LOCATED
- F. Soil and Water Conservation District
- G. Tax Map Office
- H. ELECTRIC PROVIDER
- I. NATURAL GAS PROVIDER(S)
- J. PORTAGE AREA REGIONAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY (PARTA)
- K. IF THE PROPOSED SUBDIVISION IS ADJACENT TO A MUNICIPALITY, THAT municipality ~~adjacent to the township that the proposed subdivision lies in~~ WILL BE SENT A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAN.
- L. PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT
- M. LOCAL FIRE DISTRICT/DEPARTMENT

#### Submission

~~Upon the proper submission of the preliminary plan, the plan shall be placed on the agenda of the next regular meeting of the Zoning and Subdivision Review Committee at which time the Committee shall take one of the following action:~~

- ~~1. Accept the plan for review purposes.~~
- ~~2. Not accept the plan for review purposes. In this case, the Subdivider shall be notified in writing of all the reasons for refusal.~~

#### **302.4 Action on Preliminary Plans**

PURSUANT TO OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 711.10, within ~~thirty (30)~~ THIRTY-FIVE (35) days following acceptance FOR REVIEW of the Preliminary Plan BY THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION ~~for review and action by the Zoning and Subdivision Committee~~, the Planning Commission shall do one of the following:

- A. Approve the Preliminary Plan and notify the Developer in writing.
- B. Conditionally approve the Preliminary Plan and notify the Developer in writing of the conditions of approval. Conditions need to be addressed before design of the project infrastructure. Conditions must be met in order to have an approvable plat.
- C. Disapprove the Preliminary Plan and notify the Developer in writing of all the reasons for disapproval.

- D. IF DEEMED NECESSARY BY THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION, THE DEVELOPER AND THE PLANNING COMMISSION MAY SIGN AN EXTENSION OF TIME UNTIL A SUBSEQUENT REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION TO ALLOW MORE TIME FOR ISSUES IDENTIFIED IN THE INITIAL REVIEW TO BE ADDRESSED.
- E. FINAL APPROVAL OF PRELIMINARY PLAN AFTER ALL CONDITIONS MUST BE MET AND SHALL HAVE A STAMPED APPROVAL ON THE PRELIMINARY PLAN BY THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION.

### **302.5 Effect of Approval OF PRELIMINARY PLANS**

Approval of a ~~preliminary plan~~ Preliminary Plan is not approval of the Subdivision for record. It is an approval of a general plan as a guide for the preparation of Improvement Plans and a Subdivision Plat for final approval and recording upon fulfillment of all requirements of these Regulations. CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS AS PROPOSED ON A PRELIMINARY PLAN SHALL NOT BEGIN UNTIL THE IMPROVEMENT PLANS HAVE BEEN APPROVED BY THE PORTAGE COUNTY ENGINEER, THE PORTAGE COUNTY WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT, THE PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT OR OTHER AGENCIES INVOLVED IN THE CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS.

#### **A. LENGTH OF VALIDITY OF PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL**

Approval of a Preliminary Plan shall be effective for a period of three (3) years following the date of approval unless an extension ~~of time~~ OF THE 3-YEAR APPROVAL TERM is granted PER THESE REGULATIONS. ~~Construction shall not begin until the improvement plans have been approved by the County Engineer and the County Sanitary Engineer where applicable.~~

#### **B. APPLICATION FOR AN EXTENSION OF THE APPROVAL OF A PRELIMINARY PLAN**

THE DEVELOPER MUST SUBMIT A LETTER IN WRITING TO THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO THE DATE OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION'S REGULAR MEETING THAT FALLS ON OR BEFORE THE 3-YEAR ANNIVERSARY DATE OF THE ORIGINAL PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL. THE APPLICATION MUST INCLUDE:

1. THE NAME AND CONTACT INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT
2. THE REQUEST FOR A ONE-YEAR EXTENSION OF THE APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAN, THE NAME OF THE SUBDIVISION, AND THE ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE
3. THE CURRENT STATUS OF THE DEVELOPMENT, THE REASON FOR THE REQUESTED EXTENSION AND A TIMETABLE FOR EXPECTED PROGRESS
4. ANY APPLICABLE FEES

#### **C. ACTION ON REQUESTS FOR AN EXTENSION OF A PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL**

AT THE REGULAR PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING THAT FALLS AT LEAST THIRTY (30) DAYS AFTER THE APPLICANT'S WRITTEN REQUEST FOR AN EXTENSION IS SUBMITTED,

THE PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL VOTE TO APPROVE OR DISAPPROVE THE ONE-YEAR EXTENSION OF THE APPROVAL FOR THE PRELIMINARY PLAN.

1. APPROVAL OR DISAPPROVAL SHALL BE BASED ON REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS, WHICH SHALL TAKE INTO ACCOUNT CHANGES TO SUBDIVISION, ZONING AND OTHER REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO THE DEVELOPMENT OR OTHER CHANGES IN CIRCUMSTANCES ASSOCIATED WITH THE DEVELOPMENT.
2. THE APPLICANT SHALL BE NOTIFIED IN WRITING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION'S DECISION TO APPROVE OR DISAPPROVE THE EXTENSION OF THE APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAN.
3. IF DISAPPROVED, THE NOTIFICATION OF THAT DECISION SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY THE REASON FOR THE DISAPPROVAL.

D. NUMBER OF EXTENSIONS FOR A PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL

THE INITIAL 3-YEAR APPROVAL TERM FOR A PRELIMINARY PLAN MAY BE EXTENDED FOR UP TO TWO (2) ADDITIONAL YEARS, IN ONE (1) YEAR INCREMENTS, EXTENDING THAT APPROVAL TO AT MOST FIVE (5) YEARS. AFTER FIVE (5) YEARS, THE ORIGINAL PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL WILL EXPIRE AND THE DEVELOPER MUST RE-SUBMIT THE PRELIMINARY PLAN TO THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION FOR REVIEW IN THE MANNER IDENTIFIED IN THESE REGULATIONS AND PAY ANY APPLICABLE FEES.

E. EXTENSIONS FOR PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL FOR PHASED, PLATTED SUBDIVISIONS IN PROGRESS

WHEN IMPROVEMENTS FOR A PLATTED SUBDIVISION HAVE BEEN STARTED BUT THE SUBDIVISION IS NOT BUILT OUT, EXTENSIONS OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL AFTER THE INITIAL 3-YEAR APPROVAL PERIOD, MUST BE REQUESTED IN WRITING (PER SECTION 302.5B ABOVE) BY THE DEVELOPER AT LEAST 30 DAYS BEFORE THE EXPIRATION OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAN APPROVAL. APPLICABLE FEES MUST BE PAID.

1. THE RPC STAFF WILL PRESENT THE REQUEST FOR THE EXTENSION TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION AT THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING FOR CONSIDERATION.
2. THE ABOVE SPECIFIED LIMIT OF TWO (2) PRELIMINARY PLAN EXTENSIONS AFTER THE INITIAL 3-YEAR APPROVAL PERIOD (SECTION 302.5D) MAY NOT BE IMPOSED IF SUBSTANTIAL PROGRESS IS BEING MADE ON SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENTS AND LOT PLATTING.
3. ACTIONS OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL BE THE SAME AS THOSE LISTED IN SECTION 302.5C ABOVE.

### **302.6 Changes in the Preliminary Plan**

If, after having received Preliminary Plan approval, the Developer ~~desires~~ PROPOSES substantial changes in the plan, he MUST ~~should re~~submit a revised Preliminary Plan to the PLANNING Commission for reapproval AND PAY APPROPRIATE FEES.

Substantial changes are changes to the number of lots, size of lots, size of lot frontage, changes to open space, to roadway configuration, drainage configuration, or location of water and sewer infrastructure.

## **Section 303**

### **Preliminary Plan Form**

#### **303.1 Preliminary Plan Size and Scale**

The Preliminary Plan shall be drawn at a scale not less than one hundred (100) feet to the inch and shall be on one or more sheets 24 X 36 inches in size. A DIGITAL COPY OF THE PLAN IN A FORMAT APPROVED BY THE COUNTY ENGINEER MUST ALSO BE SUBMITTED.

## **Section 304**

#### **303.2 Preliminary Plan Contents**

The Preliminary Plan shall contain the following information:

- A. Proposed name of the Subdivision, which shall not duplicate or closely approximate the name of any other Subdivision in the County.
- B. Location by section, range, town, and township or other surveys.
- C. NameS, addresses and phone numbers of the owners, ~~Subdivider~~ DEVELOPER, and professional engineer and registered surveyor who prepared the plan and appropriate registration numbers and seals.
- D. Date of survey.
- E. Scale of the plan, north ~~point~~ ARROW.
- F. Boundaries of the Subdivision and its acreage.
- G. Names of adjacent Subdivisions, owners of adjoining parcels of unsubdivided land, and the location of their boundary lines.
- H. Locations, widths, and names of existing streets, railroad rights-of-way, easements, parks, permanent buildings, and corporation and township lines ~~location of wooded areas and other significant topographic and natural features within and adjacent to the plan~~ FOR A MINIMUM DISTANCE OF FIFTY (50) FEET.
- I. Location of wooded areas and other significant topographic and natural features, INCLUDING SURFACE WATER, WETLANDS AND FLOOD HAZARD AREAS PER FEMA FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAPS (FIRM), within and adjacent to the plan for a minimum distance of fifty (50) feet.

- J. Zoning classification of the tract and adjoining properties and a description of proposed zoning changes, if any.
- K. A contour map of the area shall be submitted. This contour map shall show existing contours at an interval of not greater than two (2) feet if the slope of the ground is fifteen (15) percent or less; and not greater than five (5) feet where the slope is more than fifteen (15) percent. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~
- L. Existing sewers, water lines, culverts and other underground structures, and power transmission poles and lines, within and adjacent to the tract.
- M. Location, names, and widths of proposed streets and easements.
- N. Building setback lines and dimensions.
- O. Location and dimensions of all proposed utility and sewer lines, showing their connections with the existing system.
- P. LOCATION OF PROPOSED STORM WATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES.
- Q. Layout, numbers, and ~~approximate~~ dimensions of each lot. When a lot is located on a curved street or when side lot lines are not ninety (90) degree angles, the width at the property line shall be shown.
- R. Parcels of land in acres to be reserved for public use or to be reserved for residents of the Subdivision.
- S. A vicinity map ~~at a scale of not less than two thousand (2,000) feet to the inch~~ shall be shown on, ~~or accompany,~~ the Preliminary Plan. This map shall show all existing Subdivisions, roads, and tract lines and the connections between the roads in the proposed Subdivision and those of the neighboring areas.
- T. Phasing of subdivision plans.
- U. Geometry including segment lengths, curve data, intersection angles, and typical sections.
- V. Show existing mines (sand, gravel, etc.).

## **SECTION 305**

### **303.3 ~~Supplementary~~ Additional Preliminary Plan Information**

The following information shall be supplied in addition to the requirements in Section ~~304~~ 303.2:

- A. Statement of proposed use of lots, giving type and number of dwelling units and/OR type of business or industry.
- B. Location and approximate dimensions of all existing buildings.

- C. For commercial and industrial development, the location, dimensions, and approximate grade of proposed parking and loading areas, alleys, pedestrian walks, streets, and ~~the~~ points of vehicular ingress and egress to the development.
- D. ~~Description of~~ Proposed covenants and restrictions.
- E. ~~In a letter accompanying the request for approval of the Preliminary Plan~~ The Subdivider DEVELOPER shall state the type of sewage disposal ~~he proposes to use~~ PROPOSED FOR THE SUBDIVISION. ~~If other than a treatment plant, it shall be accompanied by a letter from the County Health Department stating what type of sewage disposal will be approved for the soil conditions encountered in the area of the proposed subdivision.~~ THE DEVELOPER SHALL CONTACT PORTAGE COUNTY WATER RESOURCES FOR GUIDANCE ON THE EXTENSION OF CENTRAL SANITARY SEWER AND/OR WATER LINES OR THE PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT REGARDING THE USE OF INDIVIDUAL HOUSEHOLD SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEMS.
- F. THE DEVELOPER SHALL CONTACT THE PORTAGE SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT (PCSWCD) TO DISCUSS THE REQUIRED STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWP3). THE PLAN MUST BE APPROVED PRIOR TO ANY GRADING OR DISTURBANCE OF THE SITE.
- G. PHASING SHOULD BE PROVIDED IN THE PRILIMINARY PLAN. A FINAL PHASING PLAN WHICH INCORPORATES ALL REQUIRED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AND DETAILS INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS AND SEQUENCING OF THE PHASES SHALL BE SUBMITTED PRIOR TO ANY GROUND DISTURBING ACTIVITIES.

1 PHASING PLANS SHALL INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION:

I. ILLUSTRATIVE MAPS FOR EACH PROPOSED PHASE WHICH CLEARLY MARK IN HEAVY LINES THE BOUNDARIES OF THE SUBJECT PHASE, LABEL THE PHASE ALPHABETICALLY (TO AVOID CONFUSION WITH LOT NUMBERS), AND DEPICT ROADS, LOTS, EASEMENTS, DEDICATIONS AND OPEN SPACE WHICH ARE INCLUDED WITHIN THE SUBJECT PHASE. THE PLAN SHALL ALSO ILLUSTRATE THOSE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS WHICH MITIGATE IMPACTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE UNBUILT PORTIONS OF THE PROJECT WHICH ARE NOT LOCATED WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE SUBJECT PHASE. PREVIOUSLY ESTABLISHED PHASES, INCLUDING ROADS, LOTS, INFRASTRUCTURE, EASEMENTS, DEDICATIONS, AND OPEN SPACE, SHOULD BE SHOWN ON THE MAP SHADED OR GRAY-SCALED. ALL PHASING MAPS SHALL BE DRAWN AT THE SAME SCALE.

II. A NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OR TABLE WHICH DESCRIBES EACH PHASE AND ITS ASSOCIATED IMPROVEMENTS. IN ADDITION, THE NARRATIVE OR TABLE SHALL DEMONSTRATE THAT EACH PHASE WOULD COMPRISE A "STAND-ALONE" DEVELOPMENT WHICH, SHOULD NO SUBSEQUENT PHASES BE CONSTRUCTED,



WOULD MEET OR EXCEED THE STANDARDS OF THIS TITLE AND ALL OTHER CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL. THE NARRATIVE SHOULD ALSO DESCRIBE THE PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR COMPLETION OF THE ENTIRE PROJECT AND ANY PROPOSALS TO BOND FOR REQUIRED UNBUILT OR YET-TO-BE-CONSTRUCTED IMPROVEMENTS. EACH PHASE MUST BE PLATTED IN ITS ENTIRETY

## **SECTION 310**

### **Section 304**

#### **Plats**

##### **304.1 Plats Required for Major Subdivisions**

After the ~~OPTIONAL~~ pre-application ~~REVIEW~~ and/OR THE REQUIRED Preliminary Plan ~~stages, which are both optional,~~ REVIEW, the ~~Subdivider~~ DEVELOPER shall submit a Plat of the proposed Subdivision. ~~which~~ THE PLAT shall SUBSTANTIALLY conform TO THE APPROVED PRELIMINARY PLAN AND ~~with the~~ MEET requirements set forth in ~~Section 311 to 319, inclusive~~ THESE REGULATIONS. The Plat shall be prepared by a qualified surveyor.

## **SECTION 311**

### **304.2 Application for Approval of Plats**

An application for approval of the Plat shall be ~~submitted~~ COMPLETED on forms provided by the Regional Planning Commission, ~~AND SUBMITTED WITH together with the subdivision plat, seven (7)~~ THIRTEEN (13) copies of the Plat, ~~and the supplementary~~ ADDITIONAL information specified IN THESE REGULATIONS AND THE APPLICABLE FEE. ~~, and all these items shall be submitted to the Regional Planning Commission. (Amended June 26, 1984)~~

## **SECTION 312**

### **304.3 Filing Submission and Transmission of Plats**

The Plat shall be considered officially ~~filed~~ SUBMITTED on the day ~~it~~ PAYMENT FOR THE REVIEW is received by the Regional Planning Commission and shall be so dated. ~~A review fee shall be charged, as indicated in Section 703.~~

The Regional Planning Commission may transmit the Plat to those agencies and departments referenced in Section 302.3 ~~B~~ for review, comment and recommendations. REGIONAL PLANNING STAFF MUST TRANSMIT A COPY OF THE PLAT TO THE TOWNSHIP TRUSTEES WHERE THE PLAT IS LOCATED AND TO THE PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT WITHIN 5 DAYS OR WITHIN THE TIME SPECIFIED IN THE OHIO REVISED CODE (SECTION 711.10).

## **SECTION 313**

### **304.4 Public Hearing**

The Regional Planning Commission MAY, on its own initiative or upon petition by a citizen or neighboring property owner, ~~may,~~ AND prior to acting on a Plat of a Subdivision, hold a public

hearing thereon at such time and upon such notice as the Commission may designate.

~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

#### **SECTION 314**

#### **304.5 Submission to State Director of Transportation** ~~(See Ohio Revised Code Section 5511.01 of O.R.C., AS AMENDED)~~

Before any Plat is approved affecting any land within three hundred (300) feet of the center line of a proposed new highway or a highway for which changes are proposed, as described in the certification ~~of local officials~~ by the State Transportation Director, ~~of OR~~ any land within a radius of five hundred (500) feet from the point of intersection of said center line with any public road or highway, the Commission shall give notice, by ~~registered or~~ certified mail to the Transportation Director. The Commission shall not approve the Plat for one hundred twenty (120) days from the date the notice is received by the Transportation Director. If the Transportation Director notifies the Commission that he shall proceed to acquire ~~the~~ ANY land needed, then the Commission shall refuse to approve the Plat. If the Transportation Director notifies the Commission that acquisition at this time is not in the public interest or upon the expiration of the one hundred twenty (120) day period or any extension thereof agreed upon by the Transportation Director and the property owner, the Commission shall, if the Plat is in conformance with all provisions of these Regulations, approve the Plat.

#### **304.6 Recording of Plat** ~~(moved from Section 319, 1984 PCSR)~~

Upon approval by the Regional Planning Commission, the Developer shall record the Plat with the County Recorder within three (3) months OF THE PLAT APPROVAL DATE. If not recorded within this time, the approval of the Regional Planning Commission shall be null and void.

#### **SECTION 315**

#### **Section 305**

#### **Plat Form**

#### **305.1 Plat Size and Scale**

- A. The Subdivision Plat shall be clearly and legibly drawn ~~in India ink on tracing cloth of good quality or~~ on mylar, .003-inch minimum thickness.
- B. Where necessary, the Plat may be on several sheets accompanied by an index sheet showing the entire Subdivision.
- C. The size of the sheets shall be 24" X 36".
- D. Marginal lines shall be drawn around the entire sheet, leaving a margin of 1" from the binding edge and 1/2" from the other edges.

- E. If more than one (1) sheet is needed, each shall be numbered, the relation of one sheet to another clearly shown, and the number of sheets used shall be ~~set forth in title of~~ CLEARLY INDICATED ON THE PLAT'S TITLE PAGE.
- F. The Subdivision shall be drawn at a scale not less than one hundred (100) feet to the inch.

## **SECTION 316**

### **305.2 Plat Contents**

The Plat shall contain the following:

- A. Name of Subdivision by township and, township lot, ~~plus~~ AND the date.
- B. North ~~point~~ ARROW and scale of the Plat.
- C. A vicinity map TO A STATED SCALE ~~at a scale of one (1) inch equals one thousand (1,000) feet, or a scale of one (1) inch equals two thousand (2,000) feet~~ with a north arrow shall ~~accompany~~ BE INCLUDED ON the Plat. This map shall show all existing Subdivisions, roads, and tract lines, and the nearest existing thoroughfares. *(moved from Sec. 317, 1984 PCSR)*
- D. Name and address of the ~~Subdivider~~ DEVELOPER and the professional engineer and/or registered surveyor who prepared the Plat and appropriate registration seals and numbers.
- E. Boundary of Plat, based on an accurate traverse with angular and lineal dimensions. The survey must close within the limit of one (1) in ten thousand (10,000).
- F. A table showing the total acreage contained in the Subdivision, the acreage in lots, BLOCKS and ~~the acreage in roads~~ ROAD RIGHTS-OF-WAY. If the Subdivision is in two TOWNSHIP lots, then the above mentioned acreage shall be shown for each TOWNSHIP lot.
- G. Exact location, width and name of all roads within and adjoining the Plat, and the exact location, width and name of all alleys, public walkways, parks, railroad rights-of-way, and drainage courses within and adjoining the Plat. *(Amended June 26, 1984)*
- H. True angles and distances to the nearest established road lines or official monuments which shall be accurately described on the Plat.
- I. Municipal, township, county ~~or~~ AND lot lines accurately tied to the lines of the Subdivisions by distances and angles.
- J. Radii, internal angles, points of curvature, tangent bearings, lengths of all arcs and lengths and bearings of all chords.
- K. All easements providing right-of-way for storm water drainage ~~(pipes, or~~ AND conduits OR SURFACE RETENTION, DETENTION OR DRAINAGEWAY FACILITIES) and sanitary sewers OR CENTRAL WATER FACILITIES. ALL EASEMENTS WITHIN A NEWLY CREATED

SUBDIVISION SHALL BE ACCURATELY DIMENSIONED SO THAT EACH EASEMENT LINE CAN BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT AMBIGUITY PER *OHIO ADMINISTRATIVE CODE (OAC) 4733-37-07*.

- L. All lot numbers and lines with accurate dimensions in feet and hundredths.
- M. ~~Iron pipe not less than three fourths (3/4) inch in diameter and not less than thirty (30) inches long~~ THE LOCATION OF SURVEY MONUMENTS shall be set as follows:
  - 1. ~~At~~ MINIMUM 5/8" DIAMETER AND 30-INCH-LONG CAPPED IRON BARS AT THE SUBDIVISION BOUNDARY CORNERS
  - 2. MINIMUM 5/8" DIAMETER AND 30-INCH-LONG CAPPED IRON BARS AT all lot corners and at all angle points in lot lines.
  - 3. ~~At~~ MINIMUM 1" DIAMETER 30-INCH-LONG CAPPED IRON BARS AT center line intersection of all roads.
  - 4. ~~At~~ MINIMUM 1" DIAMETER 30-INCH-LONG CAPPED IRON BARS AT the point of curvature and the point of ~~tangent~~ TANGENCY of all curves on the RIGHT OF WAY AND center line of the road ~~and on all lot lines~~.
- ~~N. Monument boxes at intersections and at all points of curvature and points of tangent~~  
~~NOTE: The Portage County Engineer will not approve a road for public use (Ohio Revised Code Section 711.091) unless pipes have been set at the points indicated above.~~
- N. MONUMENT BOXES APPROVED BY COUNTY ENGINEER MUST BE SET ON ALL CENTERLINE INTERSECTIONS AND ALL CENTERLINE P.C.'S, P.T.'S
- O. The Plat shall show any or all easements of right-of-way when provided or owned by public utilities and any areas to be dedicated or reserved for public use, or any area to be ~~dedicated or reserved for public use, or any area to be reserved for common uses of all property owners~~, reserved for the common uses of all property owners. Required information for all easements must include: the purpose of the easement and whom the easement is TO. All storm and drainage easements outside of road right-of-way must be TO the HOA. Sanitary easements must be TO PCWR. Easement information shall be marked on the plat AND shown in table format.
- P. THE FRONT ~~B~~building ~~set-back~~ setback ON SUBDIVISION LOTS AND THE PROJECT PERIMETER ~~set-back~~ SETBACK lines, WHERE APPLICABLE, SHALL BE accurately shown with dimensions.
- Q. Certification by registered surveyor to the effect that the Plat represents a survey made by him and that the monuments shown thereon exist as located and that all dimensional and geodetic details are correct. (*Ohio Revised Code Section 711.04*)
- ~~R. A copy of any restrictions and covenants the Subdivider intends to include in the deeds to the lots OF LOT OWNERS in the subdivision. (Moved to Sec. 305.3 below)~~

- R. Notarized certification by the owner or owners of the adoption of the Plat and the dedication of streets and other public areas. ~~(Sec. (Ohio Revised Code Section 711.04 O.R.C.))~~
- S. Recorder's Instrument Numbers(s) of the document(s) creating the HOA must be shown on the plat.
- T. REQUIRED APPROVALS
  - 1. Approval of THE Township Zoning Inspector or the Township Trustees' designated representative in those townships having zoning. (See Section ~~320~~ 305.4)
  - 2. Approval of Plat by THE Portage County Engineer. (See Section 305.4)
  - 3. APPROVAL OF THE PLAT BY THE PORTAGE COUNTY WATER RESOURCES OR THE PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT. (See Section 305.4)
  - 4. Approval of Plat by THE Portage County Regional Planning Commission. (See Section 305.4)
  - 5. Approval of Plat by THE County Tax Map Office. (See Section 305.4)
- U. Proper notations for transfer and recording by the County Auditor and the County Recorder. (See Section ~~320~~ 305.4)
- V. Approval of roads by THE Portage County Engineer WHEN APPROPRIATE. (See Section ~~320~~ 305.4)

## **SECTION 317**

### **305.3** ~~Supplementary~~ **Additional Plat Information** ~~(Moved from Sec. 305.3)~~

The following information shall be supplied in addition to the requirements in Section ~~316~~ 305.2.

- A. If a zoning change is involved, certification from the Township Zoning Inspector shall be required indicating that the change has been approved and is in effect.
- B. Certification shall be required showing that all required improvements have been either installed and approved by the proper officials or agencies, or that a ~~bond~~ **PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE** or other surety has been furnished assuring installation and initial maintenance of the required improvements.
- ~~C. If no Preliminary Plan is filed in accordance with the provisions in Section 304 302, a topographic map shall be submitted on a separate plat sheet using the same scale as the plat showing the location and dimensions of each lot and the existing topographic contours of the subdivision at an interval of not greater than two (2) feet if the slope of the ground is fifteen (15) percent or less; and not greater than five (5) feet where the slope is more than fifteen (15) percent.~~
- C. Locations of all existing buildings shall be shown on the topographic map or on a separate Plat sheet at the same scale as the Plat. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

- ~~D. A vicinity map at a scale of one (1) inch equals one thousand (1,000) feet, or a scale of one (1) inch equals two thousand (2,000) feet with a north arrow shall accompany BE INCLUDED ON the Plat. This map shall show all existing Subdivisions, roads, and tract lines, and the nearest existing thoroughfares. (moved to Sec. 305.2)~~
- D. A copy of the restrictions and covenants the ~~subdivider~~ DEVELOPER intends to include in the deeds of lot owners in the Subdivision. *(Originally #17 in Sec 316, 1984 PCSR)*
- E. One (1) copy of ~~any approved~~ Improvement Plans, ~~(including THE Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan~~s), ~~submitted to~~ APPROVED BY the Portage County Engineer, ~~and/or THE PORTAGE COUNTY Sanitary Engineer~~ WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT AND/OR THE PORTAGE SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT for proposed roads, storm sewers, storm water retention ponds/detention basins, sanitary sewers, water lines and sewage treatment plants.
- F. In areas where wetlands, as ~~defined~~ DETERMINED by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, will be affected, a copy of the ~~application~~ WETLAND IMPACT permit must be submitted.
1. WETLAND DELINEATIONS, DONE BY QUALIFIED INDIVIDUALS OR COMPANIES AND REVIEWED BY THE ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, MUST BE SUBMITTED IF ANY WETLANDS ARE AFFECTED.
  2. The permit number shall be shown on the final Plat ~~prior to filing~~ AND ON THE IMPROVEMENT PLANS, ~~as well as a~~
  3. A copy of any restrictions OR PERMIT REQUIREMENTS that ~~may~~ apply to the site SHALL BE SUBMITTED.
  4. IF ZONING OR PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS IDENTIFY SPECIFIC SETBACKS FROM WETLANDS, THESE SHALL BE SHOWN ON THE PLAT AND IMPROVEMENT PLANS. If wetlands exist, but will not be impacted, the environmental report is still needed, as well as their location on the plat to ensure all setbacks can be identified.
  5. THE WETLANDS OR THE SETBACKS MUST HAVE ACCURATE DESCRIPTIONS ON THE PLAT AND IMPROVEMENT PLANS THAT CAN BE REPLICATED WITHOUT AMBIGUITY.
- G. FLOOD HAZARD AREAS, AS DELINEATED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY (FEMA) ON APPLICABLE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAPS (FIRM) OR DOCUMENTS THAT AMEND THESE MAPS, MUST BE SHOWN ON THE PLAT AND IMPROVEMENT PLANS.
- H. A statement of proposed use of the lots giving type and number of dwelling units and/or type of business or industry proposed. *(Amended June 26, 1984)*
- I. ~~In a letter accompanying~~ ON the application for Plat approval, the ~~Subdivider~~ DEVELOPER shall indicate type of sewage disposal system ~~proposed~~ TO BE INSTALLED.
1. If other than a treatment plant or public sanitary sewer, ~~it shall be accompanied by a letter~~ OR OTHER DOCUMENTATION from the PORTAGE County COMBINED GENERAL Health DISTRICT ~~department~~ stating what type(s) of sewage ~~disposal~~ TREATMENT

SYSTEM(S) will be approved for the soil conditions encountered in the area of the proposed Subdivision **MUST BE SUBMITTED**.

2. **PRIOR TO PLAT APPROVAL BY THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION, EACH LOT MUST BE APPROVED BY THE PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT FOR INSTALLATION OF AN INDIVIDUAL SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEM.**

If any of the ~~supplementary~~ **ADDITIONAL** information has been submitted with **THE** Preliminary Plan~~s~~, and this information has not changed, then re-submission of this same information is not necessary. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

#### **305.4 Required Statements on Plats** *(moved from Section 320, 1984 PCSR)*

The following statements shall be affixed on all Subdivision Plats **OR REPLATS**:

- A. Surveyor's Certificate **(minimum required)**

~~I hereby certify that I have surveyed the accompanying tract of land and that the Plat is a correct representation of the same. Iron pipes have been set at all places prescribed by the Portage County Subdivision Regulations.~~ I certify that this survey was made in accordance with Chapter 4733-37 of the Ohio Administrative code governing minimum standards for boundary surveys. **DIMENSIONS ON THIS PLAT ARE EXPRESSED IN FEET AND DECIMAL PARTS THEREOF. ALL MONUMENTS WERE FOUND OR SET AS REQUIRED BY THE PORTAGE COUNTY REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION.**

**DATE OF SURVEY** \_\_\_\_\_ **(MONTH/YEAR).**

**(SEAL)** \_\_\_\_\_ **DATE** \_\_\_\_\_

*Surveyor*

*Registered Surveyor No.* \_\_\_\_\_

- B. **OWNERS' Dedication AND CONSENT**

I or we the undersigned \_\_\_\_\_ owner/owners of the land shown on this Plat do hereby certify that ~~the attached~~ **THIS** Plat correctly represents \_\_\_\_\_ ~~(name of Subdivision)~~ a subdivision of lots \_\_\_\_\_ to \_\_\_\_\_ inclusive, do hereby accept this Plat of same, authorize recording of same, and dedicate to the use of the adjoining property owners and the public forever, all parts of the roads, ~~boulevards, cul-de-sacs, parks, planting strips, etc.,~~ shown herein and not heretofore dedicated; **(EXCEPT THE FOLLOWING: \_\_\_\_\_).**

*(Private roads names)*

The undersigned further agrees that any use of improvements made on this land shall be in conformity with all existing valid **EASEMENTS**, zoning, platting, health, or other lawful rules and regulations including the applicable off-street parking and loading

requirements of \_\_\_\_\_ (Portage County), Ohio, for the benefit of himself and all other subsequent owners or assigns taking title from, under, or through the undersigned.

In Witness thereof \_\_\_\_\_ day \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

Signed (owner(s)) \_\_\_\_\_

Witness \_\_\_\_\_

Witness \_\_\_\_\_

C. Notarial Acknowledgement

STATE OF OHIO, \_\_\_\_\_ ~~PORTAGE~~ COUNTY

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said county and state, personally appeared the above-named \_\_\_\_\_ who acknowledged the signing of the foregoing instrument and that the same is \_\_\_\_\_ free act and deed.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have set my hand and seal this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ 2\_\_\_\_.

(SEAL) \_\_\_\_\_

Notary Public

D. Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_

Township Zoning Inspector

E. Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_

Portage County Engineer

F. Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_

~~County Board of Health~~ PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT

Note: If public sewer and water are available, the Plat need not be signed by the PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT.



G. Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Portage County ~~Sanitary Engineer~~ WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT

NOTE: IF PUBLIC SEWER OR WATER IS AVAILABLE FROM ANOTHER PROVIDER,  
SIGNATURE LINES FOR THOSE ENTITIES MAY BE ADDED TO THE PLAT AT THEIR REQUEST.

IF AN INDIVIDUAL SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEM IS APPROVED FOR THE LOT(S), THE  
PORTAGE COUNTY WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT or other entity NEED NOT SIGN.

H. Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Regional Planning Commission ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

I. Received for record this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
~~Assistant~~ Tax Map ~~Draftsman~~ DEPARTMENT

J. Transferred this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
County Auditor

K. Filed for Record this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_ at \_\_\_\_\_ m.

Recorded this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_ in ~~Plat No.~~ \_\_\_\_\_

PLAT NO. \_\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
County Recorder

~~Note: If public sewer and water are available, the plat need not be signed by the County Board of Health. (Moved under item G)~~

L. The following statement shall be affixed ~~(in addition to provisions 1—3 of this section)~~ to  
all Subdivision Plats involving the construction of new roads;

Roads APPROVED in Accordance with Section 711.091, Ohio Revised Code.

Date \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
Portage County Engineer

- M. The following statement shall be affixed ~~(in addition to provisions 1—3 of this section)~~ to all Subdivision Plats involving the dedication ~~to townships~~ of parks ~~and~~ OR open space TO TOWNSHIPS OR OTHER PUBLIC ENTITIES;

Parks and Open Space accepted in accordance with Section 505.10, Ohio Revised Code.

Date \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.

\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
\_\_\_\_\_  
Township Trustees, PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT OR OTHER PUBLIC BODY

N. OPEN SPACE RESERVATION STATEMENT TO BE SHOWN ON THE PLAT:

THE OPEN SPACE AREAS PLATTED AS A PART OF THIS SUBDIVISION WILL BE CONVEYED AFTER PLATTING BY DEED TO THE HOA-AND MAINTAINED BY THE HOA AND WILL HEREAFTER BE PRESERVED AS OPEN SPACE FOR THE USE AND ENJOYMENT OF THE RESIDENTS OF THE SUBDIVISION, UNLESS OTHERWISE DEDICATED TO A GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY FOR PUBLIC USE, AND MAY NOT BE TRANSFERRED THEREAFTER FOR PURPOSES THAT NEGATE THE INTENT OF THE OPEN SPACE REGULATIONS.

\_\_\_\_\_  
SUBDIVISION OWNER

\_\_\_\_\_  
DATE

- O. THE FOLLOWING STATEMENT, OR A REASONABLE FACSIMILE, SHALL BE AFFIXED TO SUBDIVISION PLATS WHEN COVENANTS AND/OR DEED RESTRICTIONS WILL BE FILED:

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR SAID SUBDIVISION ARE AS RECORDED IN INSTRUMENT NO. \_\_\_\_\_ OF PORTAGE COUNTY RECORDS AND THE SAME ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN AS IF FULLY REWRITTEN.

~~Section 318~~

**Section 306**

**Regional Planning Commission Action on Plats**

### **306.1 Approval of Plats** (OHIO REVISED CODE SECTION 711.10)

- A. Within five (5) CALENDAR days of the submission of THE Plat for approval, the Regional Planning Commission shall schedule a meeting to consider the Plat and send ~~a written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested,~~ NOTICE BY REGULAR MAIL OR ELECTRONIC MAIL to the ~~Clerk~~ FISCAL OFFICER of the board of Township Trustees of the township in which the proposed Plat is located AND TO THE PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT IN WHICH THE PLAT IS LOCATED. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~
- B. The notice shall inform the Trustees AND THE PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT of the submission of the proposed Plat and of the date, time, and location of any meeting at which the Regional Planning Commission will consider or act upon the proposed Plat.
- C. The meeting shall take place within thirty (30) CALENDAR days ~~of~~ AFTER submission of the Plat, ~~and no meeting shall take place within thirty (30) days of submission of the plat,~~ and no meeting shall be held until at least seven (7) days have passed from the date the notice was sent by the REGIONAL Planning Commission.
- D. The approval of the REGIONAL Planning Commission, CONDITIONAL APPROVAL AS DESCRIBED HEREIN, or the refusal to approve shall be endorsed on the Plat within thirty (30) days after the submission of the Plat for approval, or within such further time as the applying party may agree in writing; otherwise such Plat is deemed approved and the certificate of the REGIONAL Planning Commission as to the date of the submission of the Plat for approval and the failure to take action thereon within such time shall be sufficient in lieu of the written endorsement or evidence of approval required by ~~this section~~ THESE REGULATIONS.

### **306.2 Extensions of Time for Plats**

THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION AND THE APPLICANT MAY AGREE IN WRITING TO AN EXTENSION OF TIME TO ALLOW THE APPLICANT TO ADDRESS ITEMS THAT PREVENT APPROVAL OF THE PLAT.

- A. EXTENSIONS OF TIME TO ADDRESS NON-COMPLIANT ASPECTS OF THE PLAT MAY BE GRANTED DURING THE 12 MONTHS AFTER THE PLAT IS FIRST SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW.
- B. IF MATTERS CANNOT BE RESOLVED WITHIN THE 12-MONTH TIMEFRAME, THE STAFF WILL PRESENT A REPORT TO THE PLANNING COMMISSION, DETAILING THE ISSUES THAT HAVE NOT BEEN RESOLVED AND PROVIDING A RECOMMENDATION REGARDING THE PLANNING COMMISSION'S ACTION ON THE PLAT.
- C. THE PLANNING COMMISSION WILL HAVE THE DISCRETION OF CONTINUING TO EXTEND THE REVIEW PERIOD OR DISAPPROVING THE PLAT.

- D. IF THE PLAT IS DISAPPROVED, THE APPLICANT MUST BEGIN THE PLAT REVIEW PROCESS FROM THE START, INCLUDING PAYING THE APPLICABLE FEE, WHEN THEY ARE READY TO RE-SUBMIT THE PLAT.

### **306.3 Disapproval of Plats**

The ground of refusal of approval of any Plat submitted, including citation of or reference to the rule(S) violated by the Plat, shall be stated upon the record of the Commission and A copy of said record shall be forwarded to the ~~Subdivider~~ APPLICANT. Within sixty (60) CALENDAR days after such refusal, the person submitting any Plat which the ~~County~~ REGIONAL Planning Commission refuses to approve may file a petition in the court of common pleas of Portage County and the proceedings thereon shall be governed by Section 711.09 of the *Ohio Revised Code* as in the case of the refusal of a planning authority to approve a Plat. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

### **SECTION 319**

#### **RECORDING OF PLAT** *(moved to Section 304.6)*

~~Upon approval by the Regional Planning Commission, the Developer shall record the Plat with the County Recorder within three (3) months OF THE PLAT APPROVAL DATE. If not recorded within this time, the approval of the Regional Planning Commission shall be null and void.~~

### **SECTION 320**

#### **REQUIRED STATEMENTS ON PLAT** *(moved to section 305.4)*

~~The following statements shall be affixed on all Subdivision Plats OR REPLATS:~~

~~1. Surveyor's Certificate~~

~~I hereby certify that I have surveyed the accompanying tract of land and that the Plat is a correct representation of the same. Iron pipes have been set at all places prescribed by the Portage County Subdivision Regulations.~~

~~(SEAL) \_\_\_\_\_ DATE \_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_  
Surveyor~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_  
Registered Surveyor No. \_\_\_\_\_~~

~~2. Dedication~~

~~I or we the undersigned \_\_\_\_\_ owner/owners of the land shown on this Plat do hereby certify that the attached Plat correctly represents \_\_\_\_\_ (name of Subdivision) a subdivision of lots \_\_\_\_\_ to \_\_\_\_\_ inclusive, do hereby accept~~

~~this Plat of same, authorize recording of same, and dedicate to the use of the adjoining property owners and the public forever, all parts of the roads, boulevards, cul-de-sacs, parks, planting strips, etc., shown herein and not heretofore dedicated.~~

~~The undersigned further agrees that any use of improvements made on this land shall be in conformity with all existing valid zoning, platting, health, or other lawful rules and regulations including the applicable off street parking and loading requirements of \_\_\_\_\_ (Portage County), Ohio, for the benefit of himself and all other subsequent owners or assigns taking title from, under, or through the undersigned.~~

~~In Witness thereof \_\_\_\_\_ day \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~Signed (owner(s)) \_\_\_\_\_~~

~~Witness \_\_\_\_\_~~

~~Witness \_\_\_\_\_~~

~~3. Notarial Acknowledgement~~

~~STATE OF OHIO, \_\_\_\_\_ COUNTY~~

~~Before me, a Notary Public in and for said county and state, personally appeared the above named \_\_\_\_\_ who acknowledged the signing of the foregoing instrument and that the same is \_\_\_\_\_ free act and deed.~~

~~In TESTIMONY WHEREOF I have set my hand and seal this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_ 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~(SEAL) \_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Notary Public~~

~~4. Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Township Zoning Inspector~~

~~5. Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~Portage County Engineer~~

6. ~~Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ County Board of Health~~

~~Note: If public sewer and water are available, the Plat need not be signed by the County Board of Health.~~

7. ~~Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Portage County Sanitary Engineer~~

8. ~~Approved this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Regional Planning Commission~~

9. ~~Received for record this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Assistant Tax Map Draftsman~~

10. ~~Transferred this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ County Auditor~~

11. ~~Filed for Record this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_ at \_\_\_\_\_ m.~~

~~Recorded this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_ in Plat Book \_\_\_\_\_, Page No. \_\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ County Recorder~~

~~Note: If public sewer and water are available, the plat need not be signed by the County Board of Health.~~

~~12. The following statement shall be affixed (in addition to provisions 1 – 3 of this section) to all Subdivision Plats involving the construction of new roads;~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Roads APPROVED in Accordance with Section 711.091, Ohio Revised Code.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Portage County Engineer~~

~~13. The following statement shall be affixed (in addition to provisions 1 – 3 of this section) to all Subdivision Plats involving the dedication to townships of parks and open space;~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Parks and Open Space accepted in accordance with Section 505.10, Ohio Revised Code.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Date \_\_\_\_\_, 2\_\_\_\_.~~

~~\_\_\_\_\_ Township Trustees~~

## **SECTION 321**

### **Section 307**

#### **Replats**

##### **307.1 Replats**

Any person who has legal title to land that has been platted may change any of the lots, streets or alleys by having a new Plat, REFERRED TO AS A REPLAT OR EXCEPTIONAL REPLAT.

~~made, referred to as a replat or exceptional replat.~~

- A. IF NEW ROADS ARE PROPOSED IN AN EXISTING SUBDIVISION, THE CHANGES WILL BE REVIEWED BY THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION AS A PLAT RATHER THAN A REPLAT, SUBJECT TO ALL REGULATIONS APPLICABLE TO A PLAT INCLUDING CERTIFICATION SHOWING THAT ALL REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS HAVE BEEN INSTALLED AND APPROVED BY THE PROPER OFFICIALS OR AGENCIES, OR THAT A PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE HAS BEEN FURNISHED ASSURING INSTALLATION AND INITIAL MAINTENANCE OF THE REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS.
- B. No change shall be approved if it injuriously affects any lots on the streets or alleys, or within the Plat ~~that is~~ SO changed, unless all the owners of the lots affected are parties joining in making this change, or such owners give their consent in writing on the new

Plat, which is recorded therewith. (Ohio Revised Code Section 711.24). ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

### **307.2 Exceptional Replats** ~~(Moved from Section 323, 1984 PCSR)~~

Any division of land where there is ~~a sale of~~ AN exchange ~~or parcels~~ OF PORTIONS OF LOTS between adjoining lot owners IN A PLATTED SUBDIVISION OR WHERE LAND FROM OUTSIDE A PLATTED SUBDIVISION IS BROUGHT INTO THE SUBDIVISION, BUT WHERE no new building sites are created, ~~and no new building sites are created, is exempt from subdivision regulations unless this type of land division is within or involves a platted subdivision, then~~ is CONSIDERED an exceptional replat. ~~must be filed with the Regional Planning Commission. (Ohio Revised Code Section 711.001 and 711.24)~~

## **SECTION 322**

### **307.3 ~~Procedures for Replatting~~ APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF REPLATS**

All replats and exceptional replats must be ~~filed with~~ SUBMITTED FOR REVIEW AND ACTION OF the Regional Planning Commission IN THE SAME MANNER AS ANY PLAT AND ARE SUBJECT TO THE SAME REQUIREMENTS. ~~(Amended June 26, 1984)~~

## **Section 323**

~~Exceptional Replat (moved to section 307.2 above)~~

~~Any division of land where there is a sale of exchange or parcels between adjoining lot owners and no new building sites are created, is exempt from subdivision regulations unless this type of land division is within or involves a platted subdivision, then an exceptional replat must be filed with the Regional Planning Commission. (Ohio Revised Code Section 711.001 and 711.24)~~

~~All subdivision regulations applicable to platting apply to REPLATS AND exceptional replats with the following exceptions:~~

### **307.4 Replat and Exceptional Replat Contents**

- A. REPlat ~~Form~~ SIZE: The size of the mylar ~~plat~~ sheets for REPLATS ~~only~~ AND exceptional replats ~~only~~ INVOLVING NO SIGNIFICANT CHANGES TO INFRASTRUCTURE, shall be ~~8-1/2" X 14", 11" X 17",~~ 18" x 24", 24" x 30", ~~or~~ 24" X 36", or 22" X 34".
- B. REPLATS AND EXCEPTIONAL REPLATS FOLLOW THE REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATTING AS IN SECTIONS 305.2 – 305.4, WITH THE FOLLOWING ~~Plat Contents~~ EXCEPTIONS:
  1. A ~~T~~opographic map is not necessary FOR REPLATS OR exceptional replatS UNLESS SUCH REPLAT HAS IMPACTS TO EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE OR TO EXISTING HOUSEHOLD SEWAGE TREATMENT SYSTEMS.
  2. ~~Required Statements on Plat:~~ IN AREAS SERVED BY SANITARY SEWERS, THE PORTAGE COUNTY WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT ~~Sanitary Engineer's~~ AND THE



PORTAGE COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL HEALTH DISTRICT'S SIGNATURES ARE not required on an exceptional replat. Replats shall use the same basis of bearing as the original Plat

### **307.5 REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION ON REPLATS**

THE SAME ACTIONS THAT ARE APPLICABLE TO PLATS (SECTION 306) ARE APPLICABLE TO REPLATS, INCLUDING THE LIMITS ON THE NUMBER OF EXTENSIONS OF TIME.

### **SECTION 330**

### **Section 308**

### **Subdivisions Exempt from Platting (Minor Subdivisions)**

#### **308.1 Criteria for Subdivisions Exempt from Platting**

~~The following~~ A subdivision THAT does not require a Plat, ~~and~~ shall be known as a "Subdivision exempt from Platting" (*Ohio Revised Code* Section 711.131) OR A MINOR SUBDIVISION. IT MUST MEET ALL OF THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA:

- A. The proposed subdivision is located along an existing public road and involves no opening, widening, or extension of any street or road, public or private.
- B. The proposed subdivision involves no more than five (5) lots after the original tract has been completely subdivided.
- C. LOTS ARE NOT IN A PLATTED SUBDIVISION.

#### **308.2 Approval of Subdivisions Exempt from Platting**

- A. A subdivision exempt from platting must ~~still~~ be approved by the Portage County Regional Planning Commission STAFF and shall only be approved if it meets all of the following conditions:
  - 1. The proposed subdivision is not contrary to applicable zoning regulations. THE ZONING INSPECTOR MUST SIGN THE SURVEY DRAWING.
  - 2. All Subdivision regulations are satisfied, including SECTION ~~630~~ 604.
  - 3. The property has been surveyed, and the survey drawing, township zoning approval, subdivision fee, and legal description of the property are submitted with the ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL application ~~for administrative approval~~ form (See Appendix 3A).

- B. If the PORTAGE COUNTY Regional Planning Commission STAFF is satisfied ~~that~~ the proposed subdivision meets all the above conditions it shall, within seven (7) working days after submission of an application for approval ~~as~~ OF A subdivision exempt from platting, approve such proposed subdivision and, on presentation of a conveyance of said subdivision, stamp the same **“Approved by Portage County Regional Planning Commission; No Plat Required”** and the authorized representative of the REGIONAL PLANNING Commission shall sign AND DATE the conveyance.

PROPOSED lots along existing private easements or streets (not public roads), ~~dedicated to the use of~~ USED FOR ACCESS BY PROPERTY owners do not qualify as a subdivisionS exempt from platting. All subdividing situations that do not come under this section shall require record Plats. Actions of the Administrator on an application for approval of a subdivision exempt from platting may be appealed to the full Regional Planning Commission when submitted to them in writing, PROVIDED SUCH APPEAL DOES NOT CONTRADICT REGULATIONS IN THE OHIO REVISED CODE (Ohio Revised Code Section 711.131) REGARDING SUBDIVISIONS EXEMPT FROM PLATTING. ~~(See Application for Subdivision Variance Form).~~

## **Section 309**

### **DIVISIONS OF LAND FIVE (5) ACRES AND LARGER (EXEMPT FROM SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS)**

#### **309.1 Criteria for Divisions of Land Five (5) Acres and Larger**

THE DIVISION OF A PARCEL OF LAND INTO ANY NUMBER OF LOTS, EACH OF WHICH IS FIVE (5) ACRES OR LARGER IN SIZE, IS EXEMPT IF ALL OF THE FOLLOWING CRITERIA ARE MET:

- A. THE DIVISION DOES NOT INVOLVE THE OPENING, WIDENING, OR EXTENSION OF ANY STREET OR ROAD, PUBLIC OR PRIVATE.
- B. THE DIVISION DOES NOT REQUIRE AN EASEMENT FOR ACCESS. LANDLOCKED PARCELS ARE CONSIDERED TO BE PARCELS THAT REQUIRE AN EASEMENT OF ACCESS AND ARE NOT CONSIDERED EXEMPTIONS.
- C. THE DIVISION DOES NOT MEET THE DEFINITION OF A SUBDIVISION IN SECTION 711.001.B1 OR .B2 OF THE OHIO REVISED CODE.
- D. THE ORIGINAL TRACT OF LAND HAS NOT BEEN PREVIOUSLY SUBDIVIDED BY THE OWNER INTO A PARCEL OF LAND LESS THAN FIVE (5) ACRES IN SIZE.

#### **309.2 Submittal Requirements for Divisions of Land Five (5) Acres or Larger**

- A. A COPY OF THE SURVEY DRAWING THAT MEETS THE STANDARDS FOR BOUNDARY SURVEYS, OHIO ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 4733-37.
- B. THE CONVEYANCE DOCUMENT FOR THE PARCELS OF LAND BEING CREATED, SIGNED BY

THE PROPERTY OWNER(S).

### **309.3 Endorsement of Divisions of Land Five (5) Acres or Larger**

- A. IF THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF IS SATISFIED THAT THE PROPOSED DIVISION OF LAND MEETS ALL OF THE CRITERIA FOR DIVISIONS OF LAND FIVE (5) ACRES AND LARGER AS LISTED IN THIS SECTION, ON PRESENTATION OF A CONVEYANCE OF SAID DIVISION, THE CONVEYANCE SHALL BE STAMPED AS FOLLOWS, "**EXEMPT FROM PORTAGE COUNTY SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS**," AND SIGNED AND DATED BY THE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION.
- B. IF THE DIVISION CANNOT BE ENDORSED BECAUSE THE DIVISION DOES NOT MEET THE CRITERIA FOR A DIVISION OF LAND FIVE (5) ACRES OR LARGER, THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL PROVIDE THE APPLICANT THE REASONS FOR NOT ENDORSING THE CONVEYANCE DOCUMENT.

## **Section 310**

### **TRANSFERS OF LAND BETWEEN ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS (EXEMPT FROM SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS)**

#### **310.1 Criteria for Transfers of Land Between Adjoining Property Owners**

PURSUANT TO *OHIO REVISED CODE* SECTION 711.001.B1b, THE SALE OR EXCHANGE OF PARCELS BETWEEN ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS, WHERE THAT SALE OR EXCHANGE DOES NOT CREATE ADDITIONAL BUILDING SITES, AS DEFINED IN THESE REGULATIONS, IS CONSIDERED EXEMPT. HOWEVER:

- A. NONE OF THE PROPERTIES INVOLVED IN THE TRANSFER CAN BE LOCATED WITHIN A PLATTED SUBDIVISION. IF THEY ARE WITHIN A PLATTED SUBDIVISION, REPLATTING PROCEDURES MUST BE FOLLOWED.
- B. THE PROPERTY BEING TRANSFERRED MUST BE COMBINED WITH THE ADJACENT PARCEL OF LAND INTO A SINGLE PARCEL WITH ONE LEGAL DESCRIPTION.
- C. BUILDING SITE: FOR PURPOSES OF ADMINISTERING THESE REGULATIONS AND IN DETERMINING WHAT CONSTITUTES A SUBDIVISION PER *OHIO REVISED CODE* SECTION 711.001(B1), A LOT SHALL BE CONSIDERED A POTENTIAL BUILDING SITE IF IT IS FORTY-EIGHT HUNDRED (4,800) SQUARE FEET OR MORE IN AREA WHERE SANITARY SEWER IS AVAILABLE AND FORTY-THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED SIXTY (43,560) SQUARE FEET (1 ACRE) IN AREA WHERE CENTRAL SANITARY IS NOT AVAILABLE.

#### **310.2 Submittal Requirements for Transfers of Land Between Adjoining Property Owners**

- A. A COPY OF THE SURVEY DRAWING THAT MEETS THE STANDARDS FOR BOUNDARY SURVEYS, *OHIO ADMINISTRATIVE CODE* 4733-37.
- B. THE CONVEYANCE DOCUMENT FOR THE PARCELS OF LAND BEING CREATED, SIGNED BY

THE PROPERTY OWNER(S).

### **310.3 Endorsement of Transfers of Land Between Adjoining Property Owners**

- A. IF THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION IS SATISFIED THAT THE PROPOSED TRANSFER OF LAND MEETS ALL OF THE CRITERIA FOR TRANSFERS OF LAND BETWEEN ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS AS LISTED IN THIS SECTION, ON PRESENTATION OF A CONVEYANCE OF SAID TRANSFER, THE CONVEYANCE SHALL BE STAMPED AS FOLLOWS, "***EXEMPT FROM PORTAGE COUNTY SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS; NOT REVIEWED FOR SEPTIC TANK USE OR REPLACEMENT AREA,***" AND SIGNED AND DATED BY THE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION.
- B. IF THE DIVISION CANNOT BE ENDORSED BECAUSE THE DIVISION DOES NOT MEET THE CRITERIA FOR A TRANSFER OF LAND BETWEEN ADJOINING PROPERTY OWNERS, THE REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION SHALL PROVIDE THE APPLICANT THE REASONS FOR NOT ENDORSING THE CONVEYANCE DOCUMENT.